
Stephen Wamback, Chair  

Anna Petersen, Vice-Chair 

Carolyn Edmonds 

Ryan Givens 

David Horne 

Jeff McInnis 

Brett Santhuff 

Andrew Strobel 

Dorian Waller 

 

 

 

 

City of Tacoma 
Planning Commission 

= 

 

 The City of Tacoma does not discriminate on the basis of disability in any of its programs, activities, or services.  To request this information in an alternative format 

or to request a reasonable accommodation, please contact the Planning and Development Services Department at (253) 591-5056 (voice) or (253) 591-5820 (TTY). 

Planning Commission   ❚ 747 Market Street, Room 345  ❚ Tacoma, WA 98402 

(253) 591-5682  ❚ www.CityofTacoma.org/Planning  

 
AGENDA 

 
MEETING: Regular Meeting  

TIME: Wednesday, December 19, 2018, 5:00 p.m.   

LOCATION: Room 16, Tacoma Municipal Building North 
733 Market Street, Tacoma, WA 98402 

A. Call to Order and Quorum Call 

B. Approval of Agenda and Minutes 
 Minutes – none 

C. Public Comments 
 Comments are accepted on all discussion items, and are limited to 3 minutes per person. 

D. Discussion Items  

1. JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 

 Description: Review oral testimony received at the public hearing on November 7, 2018 
and written comments received through November 9, 2018; and consider 
appropriate modifications to the proposed code amendments. 

 Action: Guidance 

 Staff Contact: Larry Harala, 253-591-5845, lharala@cityoftacoma.org  

2. Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Implementation 

 Description: Review an addendum to the Options Analysis provided on September 19 
addressing two issues: Transitional Zoning Districts in the Multifamily Low-
Density land use designation, and acknowledgement of Puyallup Tribal 
jurisdiction over certain properties within the scope of work (This is an 
application of the 2019 Amendment).   

 Action: Guidance  

 Staff Contact: Stephen Atkinson, 253-591-5531, satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 

3. Planning Commission Year-End Review 

 Description: Review the progress of implementation of the Planning Commission Work 
Program 2018-2020; and discuss issues of interest concerning the 
Commission’s conduct of business.  

 Action: Guidance  

 Staff Contact: Brian Boudet, 253-573-2389, bboudet@cityoftacoma.org 

 
(Continued on the Back) 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/Planning
mailto:lharala@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:bboudet@cityoftacoma.org


 
Planning Commission Agenda – Wednesday, December 19, 2018 Page 2 

 
 
 

 

 
 

E. Communication Items 

(1) Applications for 2020 Amendment – The Planning Commission will accept applications for the 
2020 Amendment to the One Tacoma Comprehensive Plan and/or the Land Use Regulatory 
Code. The project timeline for the 2020 Amendment is from July 2019 to June 2020. In order to 
be considered for potential inclusion in the 2020 Amendment process, applications must be 
submitted between January 1 and April 1, 2019. To submit an application, please visit 
www.cityoftacoma.org/2020Amendment.  

(2) The Planning Commission’s meeting on January 2, 2019 has been canceled.  The next 
regularly scheduled meeting is on Wednesday, January 16, 2019, at 5:00 p.m., in the Council 
Chambers (changed from Room 16); tentative agenda (subject to change) includes: JBLM Airport 
Compatibility Overlay District; Historic Preservation Code Improvements; and 2019 Annual 
Amendments – Minor Amendments. 

(3) The Infrastructure, Planning and Sustainability Committee’s meeting on December 26, 
2018 has been canceled.  The next regularly scheduled meeting is on Wednesday, January 9, 
2019, at 4:30 p.m., in Room 16. 

F. Adjournment 
 

 

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/2020Amendment


Agenda Item 
D-1 

 
 
 
 
City of Tacoma 
Planning and Development Services 

 

Planning and Development Services Department   ❚ 747 Market Street, Room 345  ❚ Tacoma, WA 98402 
(253) 591-5030  ❚ www.CityofTacoma.org/Planning  

 
To:   Planning Commission 
From:  Larry Harala, Associate Planner 
Subject:  JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 
Meeting Date: December 19th, 2018 
Memo Date:  December 12th, 2018 
 
Action Requested: 
Staff will be seeking further Commission direction pursuant to the proposed Airport Compatibility 
Overlay District and associated proposed TMC Title 13 code changes. The Commission 
conducted a Public Hearing on November 7th, 2018 at the STAR Center (3873 S 66th St). 
 
Discussion: 
At this meeting, the Commission will discuss key themes of the public comments received and 
identify potential updates to the draft proposals. The public review draft proposals largely reflect 
the JBLM Joint Land Use Study (JLUS) and U.S. Air Force’s Air Installations Compatible Use 
Zones (AICUZ) Program guidance. The Commission received comments both opposed to and 
supportive of the proposal, as well as questions regarding its rationale and likely effects.  
 
Project Summary: 
The City is considering creation of an Airport Compatibility Overlay District corresponding with the 
JBLM Accident Potential Zone (APZ) II in South Tacoma. The Overlay District would modify 
zoning and development standards to prevent further development that would be incompatible 
with aircraft safety risks, as recommended by the U.S. Air Force and JBLM Joint Land Use Study. 
 
Prior Actions: 

June 20th, 2018 – the Commission reviewed this proposal as part of the 2019 Amendments 
scoping process and provided direction to move ahead on a separate, accelerated timeline. 
September 19th, 2018 – the Commission authorized the distribution of the proposals for 
public review and set a Public Hearing for November 7th, 2018.  
October 24th, 2018 – Staff held a community information meeting at the STAR Center. 
November 7th, 2018 – the Commission held a Public Hearing at the STAR Center.   

 
Staff Contact:  
Larry Harala, Associate Planner 
lharala@cityoftacoma.org, 253-591-5845 
 
Attachments:  

1. JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District Overview  
2. Key Issues Summary 
3. Public Comments (compiled)  

 
 
c: Peter Huffman, Director 
 

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/Planning
mailto:lharala@cityoftacoma.org




Planning and Development Services
City of Tacoma, Washington 
Peter Huffman, Director 

Project Manager 
Larry Harala 
lharala@cityoftacoma.org 

www.cityoftacoma.org/planning 

Planning and Development Services 
City of Tacoma, Washington 

Peter Huffman, Director 

JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay 
District 
Application: JBLM Joint Land Use Study – APZ II 

Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones (APZ) represent the most likely impact areas if an 
aircraft accident occurs. APZs are based on Department of Defense historical data on 
where accidents have previously occurred.  

A small portion of South Tacoma is located within Joint Base Lewis McChord’s (JBLM) APZ 
II. Based on the elevated risk around aircraft safety, the JBLM JLUS Implementation Plan
recommends that the City incorporate considerations in local planning and permitting 
processes to address the health and safety of residents.  

A review of development standards and allowable uses is being conducted to ensure that 
appropriate measures are taken to limit design and land use decisions that unnecessarily 
elevate risks to the safety of people living or working in the APZ II. 

Project Summary 

Applicant: Planning and Development Services 

Location and Size of Area: 

The approximate boundaries of the Accident Potential Zone II are: 
Western Boundary: 170 feet east of S. Tacoma Way;  
Northern Boundary: 240 feet north of S. 72nd Street;  
Eastern Boundary: 85 feet east of S. Fife Street  
South Boundary: City limits (S. 80th Street alignment) 

200.6 acres or 8.8 million square feet 

Current Land Use and Zoning: 

Land Use Designations: Primarily Single Family, also Parks and Open Space, 
Multi-Family, Commercial and Light Industrial 
Zoning Districts: Primarily R-2, also R-3, R-4L, Planned Residential Districts, C-
2, and M-1 Districts (South Tacoma Groundwater Protection District) 

Neighborhood Council Area: South Tacoma 

Staff Recommendation: Discuss public input received on the draft proposals and provide guidance to 
staff 

Date of Report: September 19, 2018 

Project Proposal: 

Develop an Airport Compatibility Overlay District that will modify 
development patterns and standards of the underlying zoning in parcels 
impacted by the JLUS Accident Potential Zone II. 

Attachment 1

PAGE 1

mailto:lharala@cityoftacoma.org


2 
Public Review Draft Proposals: September 19, 2018 
JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 

Area of Applicability 

PAGE 2



Staff Recommendations: September 19, 2018 JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 

JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT Code Outline 

Planning Commission - September 19, 2018 

PROPOSAL 

Create an Airport Compatibility Overlay District corresponding with the JBLM Accident Potential Zone 
(APZ) II in South Tacoma, and make corresponding changes to land use tables and related sections of 
the Tacoma Municipal Code. The Overlay District will implement the recommendations of the JBLM 
Joint Land Use Study (JLUS) and the U.S. Air Force’s Air Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) 
Program, by instituting changes to permitted land uses and development standards.  

INTENT 

• Prevent development conditions that could interfere with aircraft operations
• Reduce risk to life and property in the incidence of a crash, through the following strategies

o Prevent increases in densities and congregations of people; and,
o Prevent development that includes highly flammable or explosive components

• Implement the City’s policies calling for collaboration and compatibility with JBLM Airfield
• Increase knowledge of aircraft accident risks
• Recognize existing uses and avoid undue impacts to residents, property owners, businesses

and institutions

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

• Notice: Notice on Title regarding the Overlay District is required for land use actions, for new
construction, and for substantial alterations to existing structures

• Split parcels: The standards apply only to portions of parcels that lie within the Overlay
• Discretionary land use proposals (such as rezones, conditional uses, variances) must be

consistent with the Overlay District intent

LAND USES 

• The land use requirements of the underlying zoning districts apply within the Overlay District,
except that the following land uses are Prohibited:

o Residential
 Single-family platting denser than 2 dwelling units per gross acre
 Accessory Dwelling Units
 Special Needs Housing (above 6 residents)

PAGE 3



Attachment 3 - Staff Recommendations: September 19, 2018 
JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 

 Two-family, three-family, townhouse, multifamily, mobile home, student
housing, mixed-use, or other development incorporating more than one
dwelling unit

o Commercial recreation
o Cultural institutions
o Day care centers (above 12 children)
o Eating and drinking establishments (and similar uses)
o Hospitals/Medical Offices
o Hotels/motels
o Parks, recreation and open space uses requiring a Conditional Use Permit
o Public assembly/theaters
o Religious assembly
o Shopping centers
o Schools
o Utilities (overhead transmission or distribution lines)
o Wireless Facilities - Levels 3 and 4 (limits height to 60 feet)

• Existing residential uses: Lawfully existing residential uses (at the time of Overlay District
adoption) which do not meet its provisions are Permitted and may be modified, provided
there is no increase in the number of dwellings

• Existing non-residential uses: Other lawfully existing uses (at the time of adoption) which do
not meet its provisions are Non-conforming, and subject to the following limitations

o Meet the City’s Nonconforming Uses standards
o No increase in occupancy capacity (e.g., students, occupants, congregants)
o Minor modifications to existing discretionary land use permits are allowed, but Major

Modifications require compliance with the new standards

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

• The following characteristics, when proposed as part of any development, are not allowed in
the Overlay District

o Generation of air pollution, electronic interference or glare that could negatively
affect pilots or aircraft

o Structures taller than allowed in the base zoning districts
o Manufacturing or processing of apparel, chemicals, petroleum, rubber or plastic

• The following land uses shall be subject
to Floor Area Ratio limitations as
specified

o Commercial: 0.28
o Office and Personal Services:

0.22 
o Industrial: 0.56
o Warehouse/storage: 2.0 Three examples of FAR = 1.0 

PAGE 4



Airport Compatibility Overlay District Discussion, December 19, 2018 1 

Airport Compatibility Overlay District (JLUS) 
Key Issues Summary – December 19, 2018 

This table summarizes the comments and inquiries received during the public comment period and outlines policy 
options for the Commission’s consideration. The comments are generally sorted into categories based on the key 
components of the proposed Overlay District. In addition, the Commission has received comments from JBLM, the South 
Sound Military Community Partnership (SSMCP), and the City of Lakewood in support of adopting standards to address 
the APZ II in Tacoma.  

TOPICS POLICY OPTIONS 

LAND USES RESTRICTIONS 
The proposal prohibits a list of land uses based on the AICUZ recommendations. 

RESIDENTIAL Land Uses 

The proposal would generally restrict new 
development to a density to 2 units per acre 
or less. Existing residential uses could expand 
but would be not be allowed to add new 
dwelling units. Accessory Dwelling Units 
(ADU’s) would be prohibited.  

ISSUES & COMMENTS: 
• Negative impacts to property values

and the ability to get homeowners’ 
insurance and bank loans 

• The proposal would not make current
residents safer 

• Since the area is nearly fully built-out,
restrictions would result in little 
benefit in terms of safety  

• The most significant impacts would
primarily be on a small number of 
undeveloped properties 

• The number of potential ADU’s is not
significant in terms of increasing 
density  

The underlying principle is to prevent significant increases in 
density. However, the AICUZ and JLUS recognize that local 
circumstances must be taken into account in crafting the 
appropriate regulatory approach.  

Given that the neighborhood is largely built-out, the potential 
increase in residential density is not substantial. In light of the 
concerns raised, the Commission could consider modifying the 
proposal to provide additional flexibility by maintaining existing 
development standards and requirements consistent with the 
rest of the City of Tacoma for Single Family properties.  

POLICY OPTIONS:  
The Commission could modify the proposals as follows: 

• Allow single-family subdivisions per the standards of
the underlying zoning district (e.g., 5,000 sf lots) 

• Allow ADU’s per standard City requirements

COMMERCIAL Land Uses 
The proposal would prohibit certain 
commercial and office land uses with the aim 
of keeping activity at less than 50 people per 
acre, and would impose Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
maximums of 0.28 for Commercial and 0.22 
for Office land uses.  

ISSUES & COMMENTS: 
• Possible impact to property values

The primary policy objective is to prevent large-scale gatherings 
of people in the APZ II, while balancing the safety benefits with 
the needs of the neighborhood. The AICUZ and JLUS recognize 
that local circumstances must be taken into account in crafting 
the appropriate regulatory approach. It is staff’s assumption 
that the AICUZ recommendations are based on the concept of 
larger versions of these land uses. Therefore, it may be possible 
to meet the intent while allowing some smaller-scale uses 
which would otherwise be prohibited.  

Attachment 2 

PAGE 5



Airport Compatibility Overlay District Discussion, December 19, 2018 2 

TOPICS POLICY OPTIONS 
• The proposal would limit

neighborhood-serving commercial
establishments

• Restrictions seem unlikely to
significantly reduce the number of
people in the area

POLICY OPTIONS:   
The Commission could modify the proposals as follows: 

• Allow small-scale, neighborhood commercial uses
outright (e.g., eating and drinking establishments up to 
a certain maximum size) 

• Simplify the approach by replacing the Floor Area Ratio
(FAR) maximums with square footage maximums 

• Introduce an option to propose development of
restricted uses that could meet the intent of the 
Overlay District through a variance or CUP process 

PUBLIC ASSEMBLY Land Uses 
The proposal would prohibit land uses 
involving public assemblage, such as schools, 
churches and commercial recreation.  

ISSUES & COMMENTS: 
• Comments reflect a general agreement

that large gatherings are not advisable, 
and that uses including schools and 
large daycare centers are not 
appropriate in the APZ II 

• Concerns about the negative impact
on future use and value of properties 

• Concerns about the loss of important
neighborhood gathering places 

• Concerns about limitations on existing
uses, such as minor expansions for 
accessory uses within the skate rink 

Since public assembly uses by definition create large 
congregations of people, the AICUZ considers them to be 
incompatible with the APZ II. The AICUZ seeks to generally 
restrict activity to a level below 50 persons per acre. Staff 
recognize that public assembly uses are an important part of 
complete neighborhoods, but nonetheless recommend that the 
proposed prohibitions be retained. However, some 
modifications could be considered.  

POLICY OPTIONS:   
The Commission could consider the following options, which 
would need to be further explored:  

• Seek to identify whether there are small-scale versions
of these uses that would permanently maintain a less 
than 50 persons per acre level of activity 

• Introduce an option to propose specific uses that could
meet the intent of the Overlay District through a 
variance or CUP process 

UTILITIES and WIRELESS Land Uses 
The current proposal prohibits overhead 
utilities and wireless facilities over 60 feet in 
height.  

ISSUES & COMMENTS: 
• Staff have identified potential issues

for discussion 

The AICUZ’s primary basis for restricting overhead utilities and 
wireless facilities is to prevent collisions with aircraft and/or to 
reduce the potential for distractions to pilots. In further 
conversation with JBLM and JLUS staff, it would seem that in 
this portion of JBLM’s APZ II, given the distance from the 
runway, only structures substantially taller than would be 
allowed under existing zoning would cause concerns. In 
addition, the proposal contains a separate provision limiting 
height to the maximum height of the underlying zoning district. 

POLICY OPTIONS: 
The Commission could consider modifying the proposal as 
follows: 

• Remove or modify restrictions on Wireless Facilities
and overhead Utility facilities

• Simplify the proposed height limitation within the
Overlay District

PAGE 6



Airport Compatibility Overlay District Discussion, December 19, 2018   3 

TOPICS POLICY OPTIONS 
INDUSTRIAL Land Uses 
The proposal prohibits heavy industry and 
places a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limitation of 
0.56 on industrial, and of 2.0 on 
warehouse/storage.  
 
ISSUES & COMMENTS: 

• Staff have identified potential issues 
for discussion 
 

 
The AICUZ proposes some restrictions on industrial uses based 
on the potential for large congregations of people, and on 
potential concerns, in the instance of an airplane crash, with 
hazardous materials and chemicals. Given current zoning, this is 
not a major issue in this area. However, there may be some 
options to further fine tune the proposal to retain flexibility for 
the future use of property.  
 
POLICY OPTIONS:  
The Commission could consider modifying the proposal as 
follows: 

• Simplify the approach by replacing the Floor Area Ratio 
(FAR) maximums with square footage maximums 

• Introduce an option to propose specific uses that would 
meet the intent of the Overlay District through a 
variance or CUP process 

• Consider clarifying how expansions involving an 
accessory use (such as a dining area within a 
warehouse) would be reviewed in the Overlay District 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
The proposal prohibits a list of development standards based on the AICUZ recommendations. 

The proposal would prohibit the following 
characteristics, when proposed as part of any 
development: 

• Generation of air pollution, electronic 
interference or glare that could 
negatively affect pilots or aircraft  

• Structures taller than allowed in the 
base zoning districts 

• Manufacturing or processing of 
apparel, chemicals, petroleum, rubber 
or plastic 

 
Staff have identified potential issues for 
discussion 
 

 
These standards were included with the intent of reducing the 
likelihood of a crash, and reducing the potential danger should 
one occur.  
 
Staff note that these are broad categories, and that in some 
cases some of these features could be consistent with the 
intent of the Overlay District.  
 
POLICY OPTIONS:  
The Commission could consider modifying the proposal as 
follows:  

• Allow for a staff determination, potentially in 
consultation with JBLM, on proposals including these 
features 

 
 

PAGE 7



PAGE 8



1 

Attachment 3 

Joint Land Use Study 
Airport Compatibility Overlay District 

Proposed Amendments to Tacoma Municipal Code

Public Comments 
and Staff Response 

Received by 
The Planning Commission 

December 19th, 2018 

City of Tacoma 
Planning & Development Services Department 

Planning Services Division 
747 Market Street, Room 345 

Tacoma, WA 98402-3793 
 (253) 591-5030 

www.cityoftacoma.org/planning 

PAGE 9

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/planning


2 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
A. Approved Minutes from the November 7th, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting 

 
B. Oral Testimony Received at the Public Hearing on November 7th, 2018 

(Listed in the order of sign-up for testifying)                              
No. Name 

1 Bill Adamson – Director, South Sound Military and Communities Partnership (SSMCP) 
2 Rie Suzuki 
3 Courtney Brunell – Planning Manager City of Lakewood 
4 Barbara Hopkins 
5 Betsy Elgar 
6 Bill Dixon 
7 Scott Grover 
8 Jeff Hannem 
9 Jeff Nolta 

10 Rick Rosenbladt 
11 Venus Dergan 
12 Carolyn Hannemon 
13 Pamela Nugent 

 
C. Written Comments Received through November 9th, 2018 

No. Organization/Name Page 
1 Joint Base Lewis-McChord  9 
2 South Sound Military and Communities Partnership 10 
3 City of Lakewood 11-12 
4 Christian Briseño 13 
5 Jeff Nolta 14 
6 Tami Welch 15 

 
D. Staff Response to Public Comment                     Pages     16-17 

 
E. Staff Response to Planning Commission Questions                  Pages     18-22 
 
F. Appendices – Supporting information and articles 
Supporting documents 

HUD Loan Information 
Military Times Mishaps and Accidents Article 
Virginia Beach, Virginia. (Oceana Naval Airbase) Masterplan 
JLUS – Executive Summary and Aircraft Safety Sections  
Tacoma Neighborhood Element (2004-2014) 
Boeing Statistical Summary of Commercial Jet Airplane Accidents 1959-2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 

PAGE 10



3 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved Minutes from the November 7th, 2018 meeting – 
11/7/18 – Public Hearing – JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District 
Chair Wamback called the public hearing to order at 5:45 p.m. He reviewed the 
procedures for the public hearing, and asked the commissioners to introduce 
themselves.  
Larry Harala, Planning Services Division, provided an overview of the subject of the 
hearing, which was the proposed Airport Compatibility Overlay District 
corresponding with the Joint Base Lewis McChord’s (JBLM) Accident Potential 
Zone II (APZ II). The intent of the proposal is to reduce risk where possible, 
increase awareness and decrease risk on the ground should a crash occur, while 
acknowledging the existing community.  
Mr. Harala indicated that the proposal is compliant with the recommendations of the 
2015 Joint Land Use Study (JLUS) and the U.S. Air Force’s Air Installations 
Compatible Use Zones Program. Key components of those recommendations are 
all uses resulting in congregation of less than 50 people per acre and residential 
densities at or below 2 units per acre. The proposal is designed to allow all the 
existing development to remain as it is, while public assembly uses would become 
legal non-conforming and subject to non-conforming standards in city code. In short 
non-conforming properties can be rebuilt in the event of a catastrophe and can 
effectively remain in perpetuity. New public assembly uses like schools, day care 
centers, churches, nightclubs would be prohibited. Certain industrial uses involving 
large congregations of employees or processing and storage of hazardous 
materials would be prohibited. Mr. Harala pointed out that there are few 
undeveloped properties in the area, but that they are all residential zoning and that 
any new development would be restricted to a maximum of 2 units per acre or 1 
home per undeveloped lot on lots that are less than an acre.   
Mr. Harala explained that there are three zones the Air Force has identified relating 
to aircraft accident potential – Clear Zone, Accident Potential Zone I and Accident 
Potential Zone II. The only designated area within the City of Tacoma is APZ II, 
while Clear Zone and APZ I are to the south of city limits.  Of all the aircraft 
accidents around military bases, 5% occurred in the APZ II. Mr. Harala pointed out 
that should a large transport or tanker plane crash that the area of impact would be 
nearly 10 acres and the entire area is only approximately 200 acres.   
In terms of land use conformity to the Air Force recommendations, Mr. Harala 
provided that generally the subject area is more compliant than areas in the APZ I 
and Clear Zone to the south, however the area is still somewhat out of compliance 

PAGE 11



4 
 
 
 
 

with Air Force recommendations. He explained that the area is primarily zoned R-2 
and mostly single family in nature with some commercial properties along the South 
Tacoma Way side of the area and some industrial properties to the southeast 
quadrant of the area. There are some public assembly uses like churches and 
Arlington Elementary School in the area. 
Mr. Harala also reported on the public notification efforts as well as the generic and 
targeted outreach efforts, including a community meeting conducted on October 24, 
2018 at the STAR Center (approximately 35 people in attendance). He quickly 
reviewed the questions and comments received at the community meeting. 
Mr. Harala then introduced Bill Adamson of the South Sound Military and 
Communities Partnership (SSMCP), a key stakeholder of the project. Mr. Adamson 
commented that the SSMCP supports Tacoma’s effort in adopting the proposed 
Airport Compatibility Overlay District and that Lakewood is pursuing similar effort for 
APZ I. The Air Force has a zero tolerance policy for accident. Mr. Adamson 
mentioned the worst accident in terms of fatality (with 37 lives lost) occurred 66 
years ago near South Tacoma Way and 84th, right on the border of APZ II and APZ 
I. He commented that there are three types of risk – risk to the public, operational 
flight risk, and risk to JBLM’s mission. JBLM is a major contributor to the regional 
economy, while being a completely urban, encroached installation. The Military has 
been working closely with the surrounding communities to minimize these risks. The 
JLUS is one of such efforts. 
Chair Wamback called for testimony. The following citizens provided comments: 

• Rie Suzuki – Ms. Suzuki has never considered that she has lived in a 
potential accident zone, until the last community meeting, and never heard 
that a plane may crash there. Many disasters can occur anywhere at any 
time, such as earthquakes, hurricanes, gas explosions, and mass shootings. 
She would like to ask the City of Tacoma to seek alternative solutions for 
these South Tacoma residents and the new public Arlington Elementary 
School built last year. She wanted to note that the Air Force can build the 
second runway in another area, as they have a large amount of space on 
base. However, it is necessary to change the zoning, standards, and 
restrictions in the future. The City needs to provide all information in the 
future to the citizens that are affected before it comes into the law. She also 
asked for the City to allow sufficient time for all the residents and property 
owners to be able to make plans or change of plans such as accessory 
dwelling unit applications, expansions, subdivisions and building 
applications. 

• Courtney Brunell – Ms. Brunell is the planning manager for the City of 
Lakewood. Lakewood has adopted similar regulations to keep residents 
safe. She thanked the staff, and the Commission, and appreciated the effort 
to keep citizens safe.  

• Barbara Hopkins – Ms. Hopkins purchased her house from HUD, and was 
not aware that it was in an APZ II. She noted that there is greasy fuel 

PAGE 12



5 
 
 
 
 

residue on her porch, and sounds from the aircrafts are noticeable. She is 
concerned about the property restrictions will greatly affect her resale value 
and taxes. She is shocked that the Arlington Elementary School was 
allowed to be built. Apparently the safety of the children was not a priority. 
She believed the proposed action is too little too late, as the school is 
already built and people already live there. Her house has been there since 
1910, and no plane has ever hit it. The proposed restrictions will only harm 
home owners.  

• Betsy Elgar – Ms. Elgar expressed concerns about people living under fear 
of airplane crash and not being able to renovate their property. She 
suggested having a tour of the area before developing the land use and 
development regulations.    

• Bill Dixon – Mr. Dixon was a firefighter in the early 1970s for JBLM. He’s 
more concerned for the private plane pilots. He’s familiar what happens 
when planes crash. He stated that the JBLM pilots fly all the time and know 
the area and monitor maps. They are flying at all hours of the day. He knew 
about the crash zone back in 1973-75, and was amazed that the school was 
allowed to be rebuilt. He doesn’t know what impact this will have and how 
that will affect taxes, insurance and resale value. He wanted to know if the 
City has talked with other cities and insurance companies. He wanted to 
know if people will be notified with any information from studies that may 
happen. 

• Scott Grover – Mr. Grover owns multiple properties that are right next to 
each other. They knew they were in the flight path, but not in an accident 
potential zone. He and his wife bought the homes as an investment while he 
was in the Navy. He understands why the area wants to be rezoned for 
safety purposes. He found out that there are no accident potential zones at 
certain airports and feels it is unjust to place restrictions on home owners in 
this area and ignore this for over 40 years. He noted this has nothing to do 
with keeping people safe and also stated that no projects within this zone 
and certain distance from the airfield can receive HUD funds. With no HUD 
funds available, where is anyone going to be able to borrow money to buy 
the property when people are ready to sell? He asked what is going to 
happen to Fannie May and Freddie Mack, who are also regulated by HUD. 
He believed this will cause two things to occur – property value will go down, 
and insurance rates will go up.  

• Jeff Hannem – Mr. Hannem is a realtor in Lakewood, who believed there will 
be somewhat of an impact from this overlay. He owns one property, and 
wanted to state that it wouldn’t make any sense to rebuild a 600 sq. ft. home 
if it burned down. It’s a very large lot, and not being able to add an ADU is a 
future loss for this property. He will probably sell his property in the area and 
will find out if there is an impact to the property value. He noted that 
anything that will spook a potential buyer should be shown in the title. 

PAGE 13



6 
 
 
 
 

Although that’s not good for the realtor business, as a homeowner, he 
believed people should have the right to know what they are buying. He 
hoped that over the course of time that people could substantiate losses, as 
it sounds like this should have happened a long time ago. He noted it’s 
better late than never, but a lot of people have bought and invested in this 
area. 

• Jeff Nolta – Mr. Nolta wanted to talk about three things – risk, mitigation, and 
property values and rights. He noted that, historically since 1968, the crash 
risk to the APZ II is 5%, but 32% (which is 6 times as high) within 10 nautical 
miles of the APZ II. He asked, so what are we going to do with the rest of 
Tacoma that has a far greater incidences of crashes than the APZ II which 
should change a lot of what is being proposed here. As far as mitigation, he 
commented that the chance to mitigate this was in the 1940’s when they 
built McChord. For whatever reason they chose to build it on the far northern 
end of the base with virtually no other property to have any clearing for APZ 
zones, so it’s too late for that. He commented that there is only about 2.5% 
of the APZ II that is unbuilt. He believed that the cities’ opportunity to 
mitigate is gone, as the area is completely built up. We’re not going to 
change the density here unless you’ll take steps to move people out.  

• Venus Dergan – Ms. Dergan commented that realtors don’t have to divulge 
information about the APZ zoning right now, and wondered if they will have 
to divulge this information in the future. She commented that residents are 
concerned about insurance. She stated that we all live in an earthquake 
zone, but not all of us have earthquake insurance – will insurance be 
voluntary? 

• Carolyn Hannemon – Ms. Hannemon commented that because the APZ is 
not a new development why we are just now imposing this. It’s not going to 
impact the City. It will impact the people. She noted that the City could’ve 
taken action back in 2005 during a study that was conducted. It clearly 
would’ve come up then, so why is the City trying to put a band aide over this 
– because it will not impact the City, it will impact the people. She asked, 
why was the new building of the Arlington Elementary allowed? Property 
values and insurance values, and the children who live here – all things long 
term – are being affected. This will harm the citizens wellbeing in this area, 
but won’t affect the City. 

• Pamela Nugent – Ms. Nugent agreed with the people. She had been 
wanting to open up a homeless shelter on her property to serve the Lord. 
English is not her first language. The restrictions from the zoning overlay 
crushed her dream. She has been helping people who have been sleeping 
on the streets. If she cannot be allowed to do what she wants, she wants the 
City to provide relocation services if she cannot build more on her property 
to help the homeless. 

PAGE 14



7 
 
 
 
 

With no more citizens coming forward to testify, Chair Wamback announced that the 
Commission will continue to accept written testimony until November 9th and closed 
the public hearing at 6:36 p.m. He asked Commissioners to provide feedback as to 
what additional information the Commissioners would like staff to provide at the next 
meeting. 

• Commissioner Edmonds requested for clarifications on whether APZ zones 
are designated by the Air Force, how long they have been in place, whether 
the City is required to disclose that information, how insurance is affected, 
whether staff would be able to gather more recent incidents data than 23 
years ago, what the City of Lakewood has done with APZ I, and how many 
residents and lots the City will be affecting with the proposed overlay district.  

• Commissioner Waller asked how many times in the past have we attempted 
to officially rezone this area. Mr. Harala answered that to his knowledge the 
City hasn’t so far, although he is certain that it has come up in the past, but 
not to this extent about a discussion to create an overlay district. He will 
provide additional information for the next meeting. 

• Commissioner Givens commented that his biggest concern is to guard 
against future slum and blight. He wanted to get an insurance and lenders 
opinion. He wanted to know what other urban areas, older urban areas have 
done, and wanted to know about the SEPA determination for the Arlington 
Elementary School. He is curious as to how the school district responded to 
a lot of the questions on the check list, and that will help him follow their 
thought pattern. 

• Commissioner Strobel was curious about the coordination among JBLM, the 
City and the City of Lakewood. Mr. Harala pointed out LT. Colonel Kevin is 
present, who also attended the community meeting on October 24th. Mr. 
Harala noted that the City of Tacoma is actually a little ahead in a process to 
follow up on the 2015 JLUS. The base is working with a consultant on this 
very issue, as well the City of Lakewood. Tacoma is about a year ahead.  

• Commissioner McInnis asked that perhaps Lt. Colonel could help us 
understand what other communities have done, and how they have dealt 
with this issue. 

• Commissioner Edmonds asked if there is a way to incorporate some kind of 
relocation incentive if people want to relocate from the actions of the City. 
She also asked if staff have talked to the school district about the 
elementary school, and why it was allowed to be rebuilt. Mr. Harala 
answered that it’s his understanding that when Arlington was remodeled, 
this was addressed, and that he will provide more information at the next 
meeting.  

• Chair Wamback commented that it’s his understanding that the federal 
government will not provide funding for subsidized housing through HUD in 
an APZ II zone.  He is curious if that applies FA mortgages like Fanny May, 

PAGE 15



8 
 
 
 
 

Freddie Mack, and what are the impacts. He noted that it would be useful to 
have more information on the public side of this process, or was it just 
agencies getting together to talk amongst themselves. To him, it sounds like 
this process has been going on for many years, yet what sort of approach 
was taken to distribute this information to the public. He understood the US 
Navy in the Hampton Road areas of southeastern Virginia has purchased 
easements from residential properties surrounding naval air installations. He 
asked is there any consideration by the Air Force or other federal agencies 
to treat the people of Tacoma equal to how they have treated people in 
other areas of the country, or are those programs no longer possible. He is 
disappointed that the US government didn’t come to testify in front of the 
people they represent. He would encourage staff to get the federal 
government on board to come and speak directly to them, instead of around 
them. 

• Commissioner Edmonds wanted more perspective on how the land use of 
Tacoma will impact JBLM’s mission. 

In closing, Chair Wamback reiterated that the Commission will continue to accept 
written comments through November 9th. He suggested that those who already 
testified are welcome to submit additional comments and those who may not have 
felt comfortable speaking tonight are encouraged to submit comments.  
(The meeting was recessed at 6:57 p.m., and resumed at 7:09 p.m.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 16



9 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

PAGE 17



10 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

PAGE 18



11 
 
 
 
 

 

 

PAGE 19



12 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 20



13 
 
 
 
 

 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Cristina Briseno [mailto:cristinabriseno11@gmail.com]  
Sent: Monday, November 5, 2018 8:54 PM 
To: Harala, Larry <LHarala@ci.tacoma.wa.us> 
Subject: JBLM and it's impact 
 
Cristina Briseño 
7227 S Lawrence St. 
Tacoma, WA 98409 
Cell: (425) 308 3853 
 
November 5, 2018 
 
To: City of Tacoma 
Planning Services 
747 Market St. Room345 
Tacoma, WA 98402 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
On October 24th I learned about the proposal regarding JBLM’s APZII. I learned that my house is located in the 
zone that will not allow any type of development and expansion of existing homes. 
 
I am concerned regarding your decision due to the following aspects: 
 
Your decision will impact on the value of my land and house in comparison with the areas that are allowed 
developments. 
 
 I am also concern that the home insurance might go up due to the fact that I am located inside the risk zone. 
 
In this case I would like to take into consideration the following proposals and provide compensation such as: 
 
Freeze my property taxes. 
 
When the time comes to sell the house, and I am planning to do this in four –– five years' time, if I do not obtain an 
equal price with that of similar houses from the areas that are not within the risk zone, I wish to be compensated 
with the amount that I am deprived of. 
 
I would like to have a clear disclosure and a detailed information concerning the limits you are imposing to the 
safety risk zone where my house is located. 
 
Another question I have is: Is there any limit on the number of family members for the future potential buyers? 
 
I am looking forward to hearing from you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Cristina Briseño 
 

PAGE 21



14 
 
 
 
 

From: Jeff Nolta [mailto:jnolta@integrity.com]  
Sent: Sunday, November 4, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Harala, Larry <LHarala@ci.tacoma.wa.us> 
Subject: JLUS-ACOD Input 
 
Mr Harala, 
  
We met at the information meeting at the STAR Center on Oct 24. I wanted to take this opportunity to reiterate 
the questions and comments I made that night. 
  
The risk associated with the APZ was referenced several times during your presentation and cited as the reason 
that the proposed property use regulations were being instituted. While I understand that the Military has an 
interest in mitigating risk, that risk first needs to be understood before any change should be contemplated. Does 
the level of risk in the APZ necessitate making property use changes obviously necessary?  Or, is the risk so low as 
to be nearly non-existent? If so, then changing property use regulations and infringing on personal property rights 
is not warranted. The Military makes the recommendation that growth be limited in the APZ’s, but they have no 
inherent interest in individual property rights. However, the City does, and should balance the need to mitigate risk 
with the rights of the property owners.  
  
Any contemplation of land use regulation in the APZ should have been implemented many years ago. At this point, 
the APZ II in Tacoma is almost completely built out. Of the just under 500 (484) single family dwelling properties I 
counted in the overlay area, only 12 were vacant lots, or approximately 2.5%. Making significant land use 
regulation changes that will affect property owners when 97.5% of the lots already contain a single family 
structure seems completely unnecessary and unproductive. Similarly with commercial properties, there is only one 
vacant commercial property in the APZ overlay area. The proposed restrictions to commercial properties would 
have an extreme financial impact to many business owners, while doing very little to mitigate risk as it relates to 
density. Very few of the commercial properties in this area are of a type that would attract any significant 
concentrations of people. The negative financial impact would be far greater than the minimal mitigation of risk it 
would accomplish. 
  
As the proposed changes pertain to the prohibition of ADU’s on SF properties, this also seems to be an 
unnecessary restriction, given the low level of increased density balanced against the rights of property owners. If 
we assume a very liberal estimate of 5% of the single family residences adding an ADU, or 24 properties, and 
assume an additional density of 2 persons per ADU, the entire area sees an increase of only 48 individuals, 
dispersed throughout the entire APZ overlay area. That number seems insignificant enough to not justify 
restrictions that would deprive owners use of their property that others in the city enjoy. It was only three years 
ago in 2015 that re-zoning was done to encourage MORE ADU’s in Tacoma! 
  
I would ask that you first obtain data that would inform what the level of risk is in the APZ overlay area, then 
determine if that risk level requires infringing on property rights of individuals and businesses by the rezoning that 
has been proposed.  From what I have seen, this proposal would make little to no impact on density, while 
unnecessarily infringing on property rights.  
  
Thank you for your consideration. 
  
Jeff Nolta 

PAGE 22



15 
 
 
 
 

  

PAGE 23



16 
 
 
 
 

Staff Response to public comments 

COMMENTS 
(See pages 3-8 for the comments) STAFF RESPONSES 

Bill Adamson of the South Sound Military and Communities 
Partnership (SSMCP) 

Staff noted.  

Rie Suzuki  
 

At this time there is no program, nor 
funding, in place that would allow 
property acquisition or the relocation of 
residents.   

Courtney Brunell – Ms. Brunell is the planning manager for 
the City of Lakewood.  
 

The city of Lakewood has an Air 
Corridor designation in their 
comprehensive plan and reflected on its 
future land use map. The corridors are 
also called out in Title 18 of the 
Lakewood municipal code.  

Barbara Hopkins Staff has confirmed that HUD loans do 
include a verification on whether or not 
a property is within the Clear Zone, 
APZ I or APZ II.  If the property is 
within one of these areas the property 
would not be eligible for a HUD loan.  
Staff will note that there are many 
variant HUD loan programs, so it is 
possible that the citizen was a 
participant in some other program.  

Betsy Elgar  Staff noted.   

Bill Dixon  Staff has conferred with two separate 
experts on home-owner’s/property 
insurance and both sources indicated 
that in a case like this it would be very 
unlikely that insurance rates would be 
impacted.  Sources: Northwest 
Insurance Council (Kenton Brine, 
Director); Kim Wilson (Brown & 
Brown, of WA. Broker for the city of 
Tacoma).  

Scott Grover  HUD funds would not be available at 
present, a local level overlay district 
does not appear to have any impact on 
HUD financing.  There appears to be 
no impact of local/municipal level 
action.  

Jeff Hannem 
 

Staff has attempted to address concerns 
about restrictions on residential 
properties in the revised 
recommendation.   

PAGE 24



17 
 
 
 
 

Jeff Nolta The Air Force has determined that there 
is an increased danger in this area, if a 
crash were to occur it would be 
catastrophic and likely to result in 
extreme loss of life and property.  That 
is the main message the Air Force is 
conveying with the APZ II designation.  

Venus Dergan  
 

A disclosure would not be required for 
existing single family homes. However 
in the case of new development   

Carolyn Hannemon  
 

Information regarding the Arlington 
Elementary School Conditional Use 
Permit. 

Pamela Nugent  
 

Staff noted.  Also under zoning in the 
area there are further requirements in 
TMC 13 that would need to be met and 
it is possible this would be something 
that would not be possible at present.    

Written COMMENTS 
(See pages 3-8 for the comments) STAFF RESPONSES 

Joint Base Lewis-McChord (Received  Staff noted. 
South Sound Military and Communities Partnership Staff noted. 
City of Lakewood Staff noted.  
Christian Briseño Concerns about undue impact to 

existing single family residential 
properties has been frequently 
expressed by area residents.  Staff is 
recommending some possible 
alternatives to the proposal that 
could potentially alleviate many or 
all of these concerns.  

Jeff Nolta Very good points about how built out 
the area is and how these measures 
would achieve a small amount of 
reduced density.  Staff is 
recommending some possible 
alternatives to the proposal that 
could potentially alleviate many or 
all of these concerns. 

Tami Welch Staff is recommending some possible 
alternatives to the proposal that the 
proposal that will could potentially 
alleviate many or all of these 
concerns. 

 
 

 
 
 

PAGE 25



18 
 
 
 
 

Staff response to commission questions  
   
 

• Does the Military OR the City designate the APZ I and APZ II zones? 

The military designates the APZ (APZ I-II, and the clear zone), Department of Defense 
through the Air Installation Compatible Use Zone Study (AICUZ) and the Joint Land Use 
Study (JLUS).   

 

Are the APZ I and APZ II zones presently adopted/designated in a formal 
document? (in other words, are these existing or proposed designations in the south 
Tacoma neighborhood). 

The City of Tacoma recognizes the Joint Land Use Study in the Public Facility element 
of our comprehensive plan.  The City of Tacoma was also a formal participant in the 
JLUS and the APZ is a prominent part of the JLUS.   The earliest JLUS document staff 
found was the 1992 JLUS (see the attached excerpt of the 1992 JLUS).   

The Air Force and Army, together with local planning authorities, issued the Joint Land 
Use Study (JLUS) to address land use issues of mutual concern. In the study, the Air 
Force designated Accident Potential Zones (APZ) for the McChord Air Force Base which 
are areas where an aircraft mishap is most likely to occur if one were to occur. 

The 1992 JLUS directly called for greater compliance with the AICUZ specifically: 

• Prohibit any new use which results in a concentration of people, more than an 
average of twenty-five (25) people per hour/per acre in a 24-hour period.  

• Prohibit any new development or redevelopment which results in an increase in 
density or intensity of current development. 

• New churches, schools, libraries and similar buildings that concentrate people 
should not be located in Accident Potential Zones I or II.   

PAGE 26



19 
 
 
 
 

In 2004 the city of Tacoma’s neighborhood element of our comprehensive plan had a 
policy intent specifically aimed at “lowering residential densities and identifying flight 
hazards in the APZ II zone to limit injury and property damage in the event of an Air 
Force accident.” (See attached excerpt of the 2004-2008 South Tacoma Neighborhood 
Element).   

• If so, when were the APZ I and APZ II designations official assigned/adopted? 

The APZ has been called out in the McChord Joint Land Use Study since 1992, it has 
been recognized in Pierce County Code since at least the late 1990s (though that doesn’t 
really matter here that is more pertinent to the southern JBLM APZ area).   The 1992 
Joint Land Use study prominently calls out the clear zone, APZ I and APZ II area and 
lays out what the compatible uses are.  The City of Tacoma was a participant in that 
effort and in agreement with it, though a corresponding overlay district was not created at 
that time.   

There appears to have been an APZ designation around JBLM since at least the early 
1980s based on anecdotal evidence, if not earlier, however staff could not find a specific 
document that confirmed that.    

The AICUZ program was established by the Department of Defense in 1973 to protect 
the mission of the air installations and the well-being of the surrounding communities. 
The intent of the program is to bring the Air Force and the community together to plan 
effectively for land use compatibility of remaining undeveloped areas surrounding air 
installations.   

• Are the alleged HUD and financial lending restrictions based on the APZ I/II 
designations? 

According to the HUD lending checklist checking for the APZ is a standard question for 
all HUD loans and if the property is within an APZ/Clear Zone and not in a situation 
where the property is less than 2 DU per acre, then the property would be ineligible for a 
HUD loan.  Where it gets very complicated though are in the plethora of HUD programs, 
like Section 8 housing, etc. there may well be many HUD programs that do not 
effectively check on APZ status.  Staff was unable to exhaustively examine all HUD 
programs, but generally it appears to be a standard potentially disqualifying question for 
HUD loans. 

• Are the alleged HUD and financial lending restrictions based on the zoning overlay 
restrictions? 

No.  HUD does not appear to consider local overlay districts.  In this case the APZ which 
is already in place would be the consideration.   

PAGE 27



20 
 
 
 
 

• Are Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac Loans subject to any conditions regarding APZ (or 
local overlay districts) – 

Staff found nothing relating to loan eligibility requirements for these programs in respect 
to APZ or a local airport overlay district.   

• Are the crash/accidents statistics for APZ II in Tacoma similar to the same 
designation in other urban metro areas? (e.g. Tacoma’s APZ II accounts for 5% of 
all accidents which appears to be lowest of all zones, whereas, is this the same in San 
Diego, San Antonio, Orlando, etc.)   

The provided data set at the public hearing was for all Air Force facilities, combined, for 
the years from 1965 to 1995.   
 
Over the past few months’ staff has made a request on more than one occasion to several 
individuals involved with JBLM’s planning efforts, as well as persons in the military 
command (including Garrison Commander Tom Knight) and they have all not been able 
to provide any sort of specific data for JBLM beyond this data set.  Staff is attaching 
reference material that gives more general information on aircraft safety.  
 
Boeing Aircraft Accident Data - 

 

Military Times Crash Database – This data includes all accidents and mishaps, which 
includes non-fatal events and events on the runway during takeoffs and landings.  The 
trend is going up, and according to several sources that is being attributed to many aging 
aircraft and less maintenance funding.  

PAGE 28



21 
 
 
 
 

 

Virginia Beach, Virginia – Oceana BRAC Process –  

In 2005 The Virginia Beach Oceana Naval Air Base was identified under the Base Re-
alignment and Closure Commission’s list of recommended base closures.  A primary 
reason for this was relating to encroachment of incompatible development (according to 
the AICUZ) to the APZ I.  In order to overcome the recommendation, the city of Virginia 
Beach, and the State of Virginia had to engage in major funding for aggressive property 
acquisition.  In 2005 it was estimated that there were upwards of 1,300 incompatible uses 
in the Clear Zone and APZ I.  The city underwent major code changes to prevent future 
incompatibilities and encourage compliance with the AICUZ.  The city and state have 
spent in excess of $130 million dollars to purchase upwards of 2,400 acres of property, 
approximately $11 million dollars (as of 2015) had been recouped by selling air easement 
rights to the Navy.   

Arlington Elementary CUP and SEPA processes –  

In 2015 Arlington Elementary School applied for a Conditional Use Permit to update and 
expand the campus.  During the CUP process JBLM issued letters in opposition to the 
expansion of Arlington Elementary School.  The School districts response stated that 
unfortunately there was not an identified alternative location. 

• The school predated the military presence in the area by six years 

PAGE 29



22 
 
 
 
 

• The school district asserted that there is an existing school and this was not a 
proposal for a new school.  

• A voter approved levy had funds earmarked for the project, and changing it would 
be tantamount to denying that. 

• The school district took issue with aspects of the JLUS/AICUZ and felt there was 
sufficient room for interpretation.  

The request was approved administratively by Planning and Development Services on 
January 26th, 2016.   Staff can provide the letters and the decision for the commission if 
that is desired.  

Potential increase in property insurance cost –  

City staff checked with two different sources in the insurance industry Kenton Brine, 
President of the Northwest Insurance Council and Kim Wilson with Brown & Brown, an 
underwriter who handles insurance for the City of Tacoma and both indicated that a local 
overlay would not be something that insurance companies would use to set insurance 
rates.  Typically, insurance companies look at risk and the risk is already there and the 
overlay does not change the risk.  Kim Wilson explained that in general even where 
properties are directly adjacent to airports insurance rates are typically not higher.   Mr. 
Wilson stated that in cases where a property is physically attached (a home with a private 
hangar that opens onto an airport) then that would be a case where rates are going to be 
impacted.    

PAGE 30



















































































































































































































































City of Tacoma 
Planning and Development Services

Agenda Item 
D-2

Planning and Development Services Department   ❚ 747 Market Street, Room 345  ❚ Tacoma, WA 98402 
(253) 591-5030  ❚ www.CityofTacoma.org/Planning

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner 
Subject: Future Land Use Map Implementation – Potential Rezones 
Meeting Date: December 19, 2018 
Memo Date:  December 13, 2018 

Action Requested:   
Guidance on options for developing an initial draft potential rezone map. 

Discussion: 
At the meeting on December 19, 2018, staff will present options for use in developing an initial 
potential rezone map. This is a follow up discussion from the September 19th presentation and 
guidance provided by the Commission. The attached FLUM: Options Analysis document identifies 
two issues:  

1. Transitional Zoning Districts in a Multifamily Low-Density Designation;
2. Puyallup Tribal Trust properties that are within the scope of work of the FLUM and

Commercial Zoning projects.

With concurrence from the Planning Commission, staff would apply the approach for each issue 
to generate a FLUM and Zoning Amendment Review Draft for the Commission’s consideration.  

Project Summary: 
The Future Land Use Map, Figure 2 of the One Tacoma Comprehensive Plan, illustrates the City’s 
intended future land use pattern through the geographic distribution of residential and commercial 
areas, the designation of mixed-use and manufacturing/industrial centers, as well as shoreline 
and single-family detached designations. These designations correspond to specific zoning 
districts and use and development standards that implement the policies of the One Tacoma Plan. 

Per the Washington State Growth Management Act and the Tacoma Municipal Code, the City’s 
Land Use Regulations, including zoning districts, should be consistent with the policies of the 
One Tacoma Plan. However, in many areas throughout the City current zoning is inconsistent 
with the Land Use Designation in the Future Land Use Map.  This project will seek to 
improve the consistency between the One Tacoma Plan and implementing zoning.  

Prior Actions: 
• 5/2/2018 – Reviewed draft scope of work for Future Land Use Map Implementation project.
• 6/4/2018 – Conducted a public hearing on the proposed scope of work for 2019

Amendments.
• 6/20/2018 – Approved an amended scope of work and recommended the work program

to the City Council Infrastructure, Planning and Sustainability Committee.
• 9/5/2018 – The Commission reviewed background information on the City’s growth targets,

buildable lands capacity, and current permit trends.

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/Planning


Planning Commission  
December 19, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 

 

• 9/19/2018 – The Commission reviewed an Options Analysis and provided direction to City 
staff on how to resolve the identified issues for the preparation of a preliminary rezone 
map.  

 
Staff Contact:  

• Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner, satkinson@cityoftacoma.org, (253) 591-5531.  
 

Attachments:  
A. FLUM: Options Analysis.  

 
 
c: Peter Huffman, Director 

 

mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning and Development Services 

City of Tacoma, Washington 
Peter Huffman, Director 
 

Project Manager 
Stephen Atkinson 
satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 

www.cityoftacoma.org/planning 

Planning and Development Services 
City of Tacoma, Washington 

Peter Huffman, Director 

Future Land Use Implementation 
2019 Amendment 
The Future Land Use Map, Figure 2 of the One Tacoma Plan, illustrates the City’s 
intended future land use pattern through the geographic distribution of residential and 
commercial areas, the designation of mixed-use and manufacturing/industrial centers, 
as well as shoreline and single-family detached designations. These designations 
correspond to specific zoning districts and use and development standards that 
implement the policies of the One Tacoma Plan.   

Per the Washington State Growth Management Act and the Tacoma Municipal Code, 
the City’s Land Use Regulations, including zoning districts, should be consistent with the 
policies of the One Tacoma Plan. However, in many areas throughout the City current 
zoning is inconsistent with the Land Use Designation in the Future Land Use Map.  This 
project will seek to improve the consistency between the One Tacoma Plan and 
implementing zoning. 

Outcomes of this project are intended to support the development of compact, 
complete and connected neighborhoods with a variety of housing choices and 
employment opportunities in close proximity to schools, parks, transit, and other 
amenities. 

Project Summary   

Applicant: Planning and Development Services 

Location and Size of Area: Citywide 

Current Land Use and Zoning: Multiple 

Neighborhood Council Area: This application will include potential rezones in all Neighborhood Council 
districts.  

Type of Amendment: Plan and Zoning Amendment 

Staff Recommendation: Release the Draft Scope of Work and Assessment Report for Public Review 
and Comment.  

Project Proposal:  

This project will do the following:  
• Identify areas where the Plan and Zoning are inconsistent;  
• Evaluate options for bringing the Plan and Zoning into compliance;  
• Recommend amendments to the Future Land Use Map or area-wide 

rezones to ensure that the Plan and Zoning are mutually supportive 
and consistent. 

mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org


2 
Options Analysis – December 19, 2018 
Future Land Use Implementation  

Area of Applicability 

Areas subject to this review and potential amendment are located City-wide. The following map shows the location 
and distribution of sites where the current Residential Land Use Designation and Zoning are inconsistent and subject 
to review. An interactive map is available at https://wspdsmap.cityoftacoma.org/website/FLUM/ to enable a closer 
identification of properties subject to review. The colors on the map indicate the proposed Designation in the One 
Tacoma Plan.  

 
 
 
  

https://wspdsmap.cityoftacoma.org/website/FLUM/


3 
Options Analysis – December 19, 2018 
Future Land Use Implementation  

Options Analysis 

On September 19, 2018, the Commission reviewed an initial Options Analysis with a staff assessment of specific issues 
to be resolved for the development of preliminary Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map amendments. As staff have 
begun working with Berk Consulting on the implementation of the Commission’s guidance, two further issues have 
emerged for Commission consideration. The following is a summary of the issue and staff recommendations on how 
to address these issues at this stage of the process.  

Issue 1: Transitional Zoning Districts   

The Issue: In some cases, properties are identified in the Future Land Use Map for multifamily development, but 
are currently zoned T-Transitional District, which is considered a commercial zoning district. This is primarily the 
result of Transitional District rezones that were approved primarily for residential developments. However, the 
Transitional District (T) is considered a commercial zoning district, allowing a mix of commercial and residential 
use. Permitted uses in the T-District include small-scale office space, daycares, schools, parks, religious facilities, 
group housing, and retirement homes. The maximum building height in the district is 35 feet.  

 Staff Recommended Approach: At this time, staff recommends amending the Future Land Use Map to 
Neighborhood Commercial, which would reflect the Transitional Zoning District as previously approved and 
the potential for commercial use in the future. While these properties are predominantly residential, the 
rezone to the T-District implied some allowance for commercial activity and mixed-use. The impact of re-
designating these areas to Neighborhood Commercial is that it enables property owners to apply for future 
rezones to C-1 Neighborhood Commercial Zoning.  

 Alternative Approach 1: The Commission could alternatively consider rezoning these Transition Districts to 
the closest residential zone that matches the existing development. This approach may result in some 
established commercial uses becoming non-conforming as well as the removal of any concomitant zoning 
agreements that may be in place for these rezones. Concomitant zoning agreements may place further 
controls on the use of the property. These are rezone specific agreements that the City often relied on in  

Type 2: Tribal Trust Properties 

The Issue: In certain cases, properties that are within the scope of the potential rezones (both the residential 
and commercial phases) are Trust Properties of the Puyallup Tribe of Indians that are not subject to City of 
Tacoma zoning and land use regulations. However, this jurisdictional issue is not readily identifiable in the 
City’s Future Land Use Map or Zoning Map.  This issue will require consultation with the Puyallup Tribe of 
Indians and coordination with the Tribe to ensure an accurate assessment of properties within the scope of 
work that are subject to Puyallup Tribe jurisdiction.  

 Staff Recommended Approach:  At this time staff recommends an identification of these properties as 
Tribal Trust Properties and continued consultation with the Puyallup Tribe to identify the most 
appropriate way of recognizing Tribal jurisdiction within the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land 
Use map. Staff will evaluate a methodology to more clearly acknowledge the jurisdiction of the 
Puyallup Tribe of Indians within this project and the Comprehensive Plan more broadly.  

In the examples below the shaded properties are in Tribal Trust status, while the outlined properties are 
properties within the scope of the potential rezones (either multifamily or commercial designated). 

 



4 
Options Analysis – December 19, 2018 
Future Land Use Implementation  

Example 1: Emerald Queen Casino and Tribal Cemetery. 

Example 2: Portland Ave and 38th Street. 



5 
Options Analysis – December 19, 2018 
Future Land Use Implementation  

Example 3: Norpoint Way and 29th. 





Agenda Item 
D-3 

 

 

 

 

City of Tacoma 
Planning and Development Services 

 

747 Market Street, Room 345 ❚Tacoma, WA 98402 ❚(253) 591-5030 ❚FAX (253) 591-5433 ❚www.cityoftacoma.org 

 

To:  Planning Commission 

From: Brian Boudet, Manager, Planning Services Division 

Subject: Planning Commission Year-End Review 

Meeting Date: December 19, 2018 

Memo Date: December 12, 2018 

 
 
Action Requested: 
Guidance. 
 
Discussion: 
At the meeting on December 19, 2018, staff will facilitate a year-end review for the Planning 
Commission to celebrate the accomplishments during 2018, while planning for the work 
activities for 2019 and beyond. The Commission will also take the opportunity to address certain 
logistical and administrative issues, if any, to improve its conduct of business. To facilitate the 
Commission’s review, attached are the Planning Commission Work Program 2018-2020 and the  
Planning Commission’s Rules and Regulations (i.e., By-laws). 
 
Staff Contact:  

 Brian Boudet, Planning Manager, bboudet@cityoftacoma.org, (253) 573-2389 
 
Attachment:  

 Planning Commission Work Program 2018-2020 (June 20, 2018) 

 Planning Commission’s Rules and Regulations (August 1, 2018) 
 
 
c. Peter Huffman, Director 

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/
mailto:bboudet@cityoftacoma.org




Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 1 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020) 
Planning Commission Recommendation  

June 20, 2018 
 
 
Expected Completion in 2018 

Correctional and Detention Facilities Permanent Regulations Adopted Feb. 2018 

Homeless Emergency Temporary Shelters Permanent Regulations Adopted April 2018 

Tacoma Mall Neighborhood Subarea Plan Adopted May 2018 

2018 Amendment Package  Expected Adoption June 2018 

• Car Washes Uses in Neighborhood Centers (Private Application)                                (Denied) 

• Outdoor Tire Storage Code Amendment (Private Application) 

• South 80th Street PDB Rezone (Private Application) 

• View Sensitive District (VSD) Height Measurement (Private Application)               (Deferred) 

• Transportation Master Plan – Limited Update 

• Open Space Corridors – Phase 1 (Biodiversity Corridors) 

• Code and Plan Clean-ups 

2019-2024 Capital Facilities Program (CFP)  Expected Adoption October 2018 

Open Space Current Use Assessment Request (Private Application) 

Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months)  Expected Decision November 2018 

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) – Permanent Regulations 

  



Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 2 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Expected Completion in 2019 

JBLM Accident Potential Zone 

Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months) 

2019 Amendment Package 

• FLUM Implementation – Phase 2: Residential Area-wide Rezones 

• Commercial Zoning Update – Phase 1: Revised Commercial Zoning Framework 

• Shoreline Master Program – 2019 Periodic Review 

• Manitou Annexation – Plan and Zoning Amendments 

• Historic Preservation Code Improvements – Demolition Review 

• Plan and Code Minor Amendments 

Infill Pilot Program – Phase 1B: Program Modifications (may be consolidated with Affordable 
Housing Action Strategy project, below) 

Affordable Housing Action Strategy – Land Use/Zoning Implementation (scope/phasing TBD) 

Pacific Avenue Corridor Plan (tied to Pacific Ave. BRT) 

Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months) 

 

Expected Completion in 2020  (very preliminary) 
Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months) 

Open Space Corridors – Phase 2 (Geohazard Areas) 

Urban Design Program – Development/Creation 

2020 Amendment Package 

• Private Applications 

• Institutional Zoning Review 

• Downtown Plan Integration 

• Infill Pilot Program – Phase 2: Permanent Regulations (may be consolidated with 
Affordable Housing Action Strategy project, above) 

• Transportation Master Plan Update (coordinated with TC and PW) 

• Plan and Code Minor Amendments 

2021-2026 Capital Facilities Program (CFP) 

Tideflats Subarea Plan 

  



Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 3 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

On-going Planning Issues 

• Six-Year Comprehensive Transportation Program 
• Joint Meetings of the Planning Commission with appropriate groups (e.g., the 

Landmarks Preservation Commission, the Transportation Commission, and the 
Neighborhood Councils) 

• Transportation Master Plan Implementation, in coordination with the Transportation 
Commission (e.g. impact fees study, transportation network planning, streetscape 
design guidance, signature trails development, etc.) 

• Light Rail Expansion projects (including the Hilltop Links to Opportunity Program, ST3 
Tacoma Dome Link Extension, Tacoma Link Extension, etc.) 

• Historic Preservation, in coordination with the Landmarks Preservation Commission (e.g. 
TDR, integration of Historic Preservation Plan with One Tacoma Plan, educational 
programs, etc.) 

• Tacoma Mall Neighborhood Subarea Plan (and others) - Implementation 
• Residential Infill Pilot Program – Implementation and project reviews 
• Citizen Participation and Public Outreach Enhancements 

 

Regional and Cross-Jurisdictional Issues 

• Metro Parks Tacoma and Tacoma School District strategic plans updates 
• Pierce County Parkland/Spanaway/Midland (PSM) Community Plan 
• Regional Transportation Issues, in coordination with the Transportation Commission (e.g. 

Tacoma LINK and Central LINK Light Rail Expansions, Pacific Avenue BRT Study) 
• PSRC Regional Centers Framework Update, Vision 2050, GMA review, Buildable Lands) 
• PCRC Centers of Local Importance/County-level Centers Update 

 

Emerging and Deferred Issues 

• Urban Forestry Implementation (landscaping, tree-preservation, open space, etc.) 
• Parking Update (RPA, refinements along light rail, Mixed-Use Centers, design, etc.) 
• Potential Local Historic Districts – coordinated with LPS (College Park, Stadium, etc.) 
• 20-minute Neighborhood and Urban Growth Baseline Analysis 
• Street Typology and Designation System Review 
• Mixed-Use Centers Implementation Programming (Master Planning, Revitalization 

Strategies) 
• Mixed-Use Centers Height Bonus Program Review (maybe part of Affordable Housing) 
• MUC Core/Pedestrian Street Review (maybe part of Design Review) 
• Downtown Subarea Plans – Periodic Review/Update 
• Form-based Residential Standards (lot coverage, FAR, etc.) 
• Watershed-level Environmental Planning 
• Unified Development Code  
• Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) Program Review  
• Sign Code Update 
• Pre-Annexation Planning (Browns Point/Dash Point, Parkland/Spanaway) 
• Greenhouse Gas standards and review  



Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 4 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Project Summaries  
2019-2024 Capital Facilities Program (CFP) 

Summary: 
The Growth Management Act (GMA) requires a capital facilities 
element of the comprehensive plan that is to be periodically 
reviewed and updated. This element serves as a planning 
document for capital projects and enables the City to seek 
funding for potential projects. The element is updated each 
biennium through development of the City’s six-year Capital 
Facilities Program (CFP). 
 
The CFP is currently being updated from 2017-2022 to 2019-2024. 
The update focuses on adding new capital projects, removing 
completed projects, and consolidating some projects.  
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Christina Watts Curran, Lead Management Analyst 
christina.curran@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
April 2018 – November 2018 
 

 

Open Space Current Use Assessment Request (Private Application) 

Summary: 
The City has received an application from a private property 
owner for an Open Space Current Use Assessment.  Through this 
process, land owners can apply to have their open space lands 
valued, for tax purposes, at their current use value rather than at 
the highest and best use that would be permitted by zoning, 
which provides an incentive to maintain the land as open space.  
The City and Pierce County jointly review Current Use Assessment 
applications within the City.  
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Elliott Barnett, Associate Planner 
elliott.barnett@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
June 2018 – September 2018 
 

 

  

mailto:christina.curran@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:elliott.barnett@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 5 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6-months) 

Summary: 
The Council adopted Interim Regulations for the Tideflats Area in 
November 2017.  The interim regulations include temporary use 
restrictions, modified permit procedures and enhancements to 
public notice, and limits on development in adjacent slopes and 
transition areas.  These interim regulations are intended to be in 
place until permanent regulations are adopted as part of the 
Tideflats Subarea Plan.  Per State Law and City Code, interim 
regulations are required to be reauthorized every six months. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner 
satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
August 2018 – October 2018; and every six-months thereafter, 
until adoption of permanent regulations 
 
 

 

Detached Accessory Dwelling Units (DADUs) – Permanent Regulations  

Summary: 
Detached Accessory Dwelling Units (DADUs) were a part of the 
City’s Infill Pilot Program.  During the first part of the Round 1 
Selection of Projects, the three available Detached Accessory 
Dwelling Units in single-family zoning districts were all selected.  
This project would build upon the lessons learned regarding 
DADUs though the pilot program, as well as the experiences of 
other jurisdictions and insights from community outreach, to 
evaluate the potential for permanent regulations regarding 
detached ADUs in single-family zones in Tacoma. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Lauren Flemister, Senior Planner 
lflemister@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
June 2018 – November 2018 
 

 

  

mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:lflemister@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 6 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

JBLM Accident Potential Zone 

Summary: 
This project will evaluate the findings and recommendations of 
the Joint Land Use Study for Joint-Base Lewis-McChord and 
evaluate strategies for addressing compatibility with the base, 
with specific focus on the Accident Potential Zone (APZ). 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Elliott Barnett, Associate Planner 
elliott.barnett@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
June 2018 – January 2019 
 
 
 

 

Future Land Use Map Implementation – Phase 2: Residential Area-wide Rezones 

Summary: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan provides a 
basis for applying zoning and for making land use decisions. This 
project will put into effect the land use designations through 
appropriate area-wide rezones to achieve consistency with the 
Future Land Use Map, and work to achieve the goals of the One 
Tacoma Plan, with this phase focusing on addressing 
inconsistencies in residentially-zoned areas. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner 
satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
March 2018 – June 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:elliott.barnett@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 7 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Commercial Zoning Update – Phase 1: Revised Commercial Zoning Framework 

Summary: 
The Commercial Zoning update will revise the design and 
development standards for the City’s Neighborhood and General 
Commercial zoning districts. The project will bring these districts 
into alignment with the goals and policies of the One Tacoma Plan 
to promote more context-sensitive commercial zoning standards. 
This first phase will focus on creating a new commercial zoning 
framework that would then be implemented through code 
changes and rezones in a next phase. 
 
This project may involve the creation or consolidation of existing 
commercial zoning districts.  
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner 
satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
May 2018 – June 2019 
 

 

 
Shoreline Master Program – 2019 Periodic Update 

Summary: 
The State Shoreline Management Act requires local governments 
to periodically review their shoreline master programs and make 
any adjustments deemed necessary to reflect changing local 
circumstances, new information or improved data.  Per State Law, 
the City of Tacoma is required to conduct a periodic review before 
the end of June 2019.  The initial public scoping phase of the 
project will inform what information, issues, and topics are 
pertinent for this periodic review.  

Primary Staff Contact: 
Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner 
satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
March 2018 – June 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 8 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Historic Preservation Code Improvements – Demolition Review 

Summary: 
This proposal seeks to improve the effectiveness of the Historic 
Preservation Program through a series of code amendments, 
including: enhancement of demolition/cultural resources impact 
review; clarification of the nomination and designation process 
and project review; and updates to the Historic Conditional Use 
Permit process. Companion amendments regarding the 
composition of the Landmarks Commission are also being 
considered. 

Primary Staff Contact: 
Reuben McKnight, Historic Preservation Officer 
reuben.mcknight@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
March 2018 – June 2019 
 

 

 
Plan and Code Minor Amendments 

Summary: 
As part of the 2019 Amendment Package, this proposal would 
amend the Land Use Regulatory Code to keep information 
current, address inconsistencies, correct errors and clarify code 
language, in order to improve code administration efficiency and 
enhance customer service. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Lihuang Wung, Senior Planner 
lwung@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
June 2018 – June 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:reuben.mcknight@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:lwung@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 9 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Manitou Annexation – Plan and Zoning Amendments 

Summary: 
Pierce County and the City of Tacoma are planning to conduct a 
joint review of the Manitou Neighborhood in order to inform the 
decision for the potential annexation of the area to the City.  The 
annexation study would include evaluation of issues such as 
appropriate zoning and plan designations and policies, utility 
infrastructure, services and costs, and community amenities, 
taxes and representation.  The review is expected to be initiated 
by Pierce County Council and Tacoma City Council in June-July 
2018. 
 
Note:  As this project will likely necessitate changes to the One 
Tacoma Comprehensive Plan, it will likely need to be incorporated 
into the 2019 Amendment Package. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Lihuang Wung, Senior Planner 
lwung@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
May 2018 – June 2019 
 

 

 
Residential Infill Pilot Program – Phase 1B: Program Modifications 

Summary: 
The purpose of the Pilot Program is to promote innovative 
residential infill development types. The program was adopted in 
2015 and the first phase of implementation is in progress. Four 
projects submitted by interested developers have been selected 
to move into the permitting process. 
 
This phase of implementation will consider lessons learned from 
completed and approved projects, as well as projects that were 
not submitted and/or were not approved, to evaluate code 
amendments to the infill code and guidelines that could support 
the continued implementation of the program. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Lauren Flemister, Senior Planner 
lflemister@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
June 2018 – June 2019 
 
 

 

mailto:lwung@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:lflemister@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 10 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Affordable Housing Action Strategy – Land Use/Zoning Implementation 

Summary: 
The City’s Housing Division is currently working with the City 
Council to put together a comprehensive Action Strategy on 
Affordable Housing.  The Action Strategy, which is expected to be 
complete in July 2018, will identify and evaluate various methods 
for addressing this high priority issue that reflects better 
programmatic alignment throughout the City of Tacoma and its 
community partners.  It is expected that this Action Strategy will 
include numerous items that directly relate to planning and 
zoning issues and potential code and/or plan amendments. 
 
Note:  Depending on the scope of this project, it may involve 
multiple phases. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
TBD 
 
General Project Timeline: 
TBD 
 

 

 
Pacific Avenue Corridor Plan 

Summary: 
The Pacific Avenue Bus Rapid Transit proposal, part of the Sound 
Transit 3 package, is poised to spur revitalization of a critical 
corridor within Tacoma that includes two designated Mixed-use 
Centers and a neighborhood business district.  This Corridor Plan 
is designed to maximize the impact of this significant transit 
investment and facilitate this revitalization through a unique 
transit-oriented development planning project that would focus 
on redevelopment, capital investment, livability, supporting 
existing and encouraging new business activity, and conducting 
area-wide environmental review along the corridor.  
 
Note:  This project is considered as a potential partnership 
between agencies including Planning and Development Services, 
Public Works, Utility providers, Pierce Transit, Tacoma-Pierce 
County Health Department, etc. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
TBD 
 
General Project Timeline: 
November 2018 – November 2019 
 

 



Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 11 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Open Space Corridors – Phase 2: Geo-hazard Areas 

Summary: 
This effort focuses on Critical Areas standards for development 
and disturbance within and around erosion and landslide hazard 
areas—types of Geologically Hazardous Areas associated with 
steep slopes. Tacoma’s standards for Geologically Hazardous 
Areas are due for an update to reflect recent statutory 
amendments and the Best Available Science (BAS). The updates 
will address gaps and inconsistencies in the current code and 
integrate the latest science in order to more effectively limit risks 
to life and property in areas prone to landslides or erosion. 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Elliott Barnett, Associate Planner 
elliott.barnett@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
June 2019 – February 2020 
 
 
 
 

 

Urban Design Program – Establishment 

Summary: 
The Urban Design Studio is a proposed long-term program with a 
focus on delivering urban design services to customers in the 
Planning and Development Services Department, to other City 
departments, and through external public and private 
partnerships. 
 
The initial phase of this project will include extensive public 
engagement, development of design guidelines, administrative 
procedures, and municipal code amendments. 
 
Note:  This project will incorporate consideration of the issues 
highlighted in Private Application #2018-05 “Design Review in 
MUCs” 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Lauren Flemister, Senior Planner 
lflemister@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
July 2018 – February 2020 
 
 

 

mailto:elliott.barnett@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:lflemister@cityoftacoma.org


Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)  Page 12 of 12 
(Planning Commission Recommendation, June 20, 2018)  

Tideflats Subarea Plan 

Summary: 
The City Council adopted Amended Resolution No. 39723 on 
May 9, 2017, initiating the Tideflats subarea planning process.  
The resolution requested the Planning Commission to consolidate 
several planning initiatives currently underway for the area into a 
single, area-wide subarea planning effort and requested the City 
Manager to identify resources need for the subarea planning 
effort and negotiate an Interlocal Agreement with the Port and 
the Puyallup Tribe for collaboration of the project.  The Interlocal 
Agreement is still being discussed between the potential 
partnership agencies and the specific scope of work and timeline 
for the subarea plan is yet to be determined. 
 
Note:  This project incorporates consideration of the issues 
highlighted in: 

• NETNC’s “NE Tacoma Buffer Zone” Application #2018-04 
• The Council Consideration Request pertaining to the 

implementation of the Port Container Element 
• PDS Director’s Rule on Heavy Industrial Expanded 

Notification 
 
Primary Staff Contact: 
Stephen Atkinson, Principal Planner 
satkinson@cityoftacoma.org 
 
General Project Timeline: 
Planned initiation in 2018 

 

 

mailto:satkinson@cityoftacoma.org


 
 City of Tacoma 
 Planning Commission 

747 Market Street, Room 345  ▌ Tacoma, Washington 98402-3793  ▌ (253) 591-5682 
http://www.cityoftacoma.org/planning 

 
TACOMA PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
RULES AND REGULATIONS (“BY-LAWS”) 

 
The following Rules and Regulations of the Tacoma Planning Commission were originally 
adopted by the Commission on July 6, 1954, and subsequently amended on January 29, 1964; 
April 20, 1970, July 21, 1980; September 4, 1991; August 16, 1993; August 21, 1995; May 21, 
1997; June 7, 2000; October 20, 2004; November 18, 2009; December 1, 2010; August 5, 2015; 
June 1, 2016; December 6, 2017; and August 1, 2018.  These Rules and Regulations conform 
to the statutory authority of the City Charter (Article III, Section 3.8 – City Planning Commission) 
and the Tacoma Municipal Code (TMC) (Title 13, Chapter 13.02 – Planning Commission). 
 
The Rules and Regulations contain the following sections: 

I. Officers 
II. Advisory Committees and Task Forces 
III. Staffing 
IV. Meetings 
V. Records 
VI. Annual Report  
VII. Miscellaneous 
VIII. Rules and Regulations Amendments 

 
 
I. Officers 
 

A. The Commission shall elect its own Chair, Vice-Chair, and such other officers as from 
time to time it may determine it requires, all of whom shall be members of the 
Commission. 

 
B. Nominations and elections of officers shall be conducted at the first meeting in 

September of each year or on a different date set by the Commission.  New officers 
will assume duties after the meeting following their election. 

 
C. Officer Qualification Considerations – The Officers should be interested in holding the 

position(s); be able to devote sufficient time to Commission business and attend as 
many Commission meetings as possible; be prepared to make presentations to the 
City Council, citizens, committees, neighborhood groups, and service clubs regarding 
Commission responsibilities, projects, plans and policies; and have sufficient 
experience on the Commission to understand its role and functions and to have a 
basic understanding of the City's Comprehensive Plan policies and development 
regulations. 

 
D. The term of office shall be for one (1) year or until the next scheduled election.  In case 

of any vacancy in office, the vacancy shall be filled by an election at the first regular 
meeting after the occurrence of such vacancy. 

 



Tacoma Planning Commission Rules and Regulations (As Amended on August 1, 2018) Page 2 of 6 

E. Duties of Officers – The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the Commission.  All 
resolutions adopted by the Commission and Commission correspondence shall be 
signed in his/her name as Chair of the Commission.  In the event of the absence of the 
Chair or his/her inability to act, the Vice-Chair shall take his/her place and perform 
his/her duties.  In the event of the absences or inability to act of both the Chair and the 
Vice-Chair, the remaining members of the Commission shall appoint one of their 
members to temporarily act as Chair. 

 
II. Advisory Committees and Task Forces 
 

A. Advisory Committees – The Commission may establish advisory committees as it 
deems appropriate, following the procedures set forth in TMC 13.02.015. 

 
B. Task Forces – The Commission may also establish task forces as it deems 

appropriate to conduct extended and supplemental analyses of issues identified and 
defined by the Commission.  Task forces are ad-hoc and issue-oriented in nature and 
shall not be construed to have the same organization and operation as those of 
“advisory committees.”  A task force shall be comprised of up to four (4) members of 
the Commission designated by the Commission by a majority vote.  Chairpersons of 
task forces may be designated by the Chair of the Commission.  There shall not be 
more than two task forces operating at any given time.  Task forces shall serve at the 
discretion of the Commission and their duties and responsibilities shall be established 
by the Commission.  All task force meetings shall be open to the public and conducted 
in accordance with these rules.  Task forces may not conduct public hearings.   

 
III. Staffing 
 

The Long-Range Planning Division Manager and/or his/her designee (hereinafter referred 
to as Staff) shall organize and supervise clerical details of the Commission's business and 
shall be responsible to the Commission for the proper preparation and maintenance of 
records of meetings, hearings, official actions and all public records.  Staff shall be 
responsible for providing such other services as may be required by the Commission 
within the limits of the budget for the Planning and Development Services Department as 
approved by the City Council. 

 
IV. Meetings 
 

A. Regular Meetings – Regular public meetings of the Commission shall be held on the 
first and third Wednesday of each month at 5:00 p.m. in Room 16 of the Tacoma 
Municipal Building North, or in another location designated by the Commission.  If the 
regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the Chair of the Commission shall fix 
another day therefore and give notice of said meeting as hereinafter providing for 
“special meetings.”  The notice for any regular public meeting shall indicate the date, 
time, place and business to be transacted, and be distributed prior to the meeting to 
those individuals and organizations listed on the mailing list that shall be maintained by 
Staff and may be subject to the Commission’s approval.   

 
B. Public Hearings – Public hearings conducted by the Commission shall be held in the 

Council Chambers of the Tacoma Municipal Building or another location designated by 
the Commission and indicated in the notice of hearing.  The date and time of the 
hearing shall be determined by the Commission and indicated on the notice of hearing.  



Tacoma Planning Commission Rules and Regulations (As Amended on August 1, 2018) Page 3 of 6 

Notices for public hearings shall be distributed in accordance with TMC 13.02.057.  
Notices shall also be mailed, prior to the hearing, to those on the mailing list as 
hereinabove provided, to those individuals or organizations which have indicated in 
writing to the Planning and Development Services Department an interest in the 
subject(s) of the hearing, and to other interested parties as deemed appropriate by the 
Commission.  An additional notice shall be required for matters continued for further 
hearing and continued to a time, date, and place certain. 

 
C. Special Meetings – Special meetings of the Commission set for a time different than 

regularly scheduled as hereinabove provided shall be held at such times as the 
Commission may determine, or may be called by the Chair for any time upon the 
written request of three members of the Commission.  Special meetings shall be open 
to the public.  Per RCW 42.30.080, special meetings require at least 24 hours' written 
notice.  Such notice shall indicate the date, time, place and business to be transacted.  
Notices of special meetings shall be distributed to the same recipients of notices for 
regular public meetings, to the recipients on the special press mailing list on file with 
the City Clerk’s Office, and to other interested parties as deemed appropriate by the 
Commission.   

 
D. Quorum – A quorum for the transaction of official business shall consist of a simple 

majority of appointed, filled positions of the Commission, per TMC 13.02.041. 
   

E. Absences – Members are expected to attend Commission meetings and to fully 
participate in and contribute to the work of the Commission.  Any member anticipating 
absence from a meeting should notify the Chair or Staff in advance, so that the 
absence may be excused by the Commission at the meeting. Any member who is 
absent from three consecutive meetings without being excused or six meetings in a 
calendar year, whether excused or unexcused, should be deemed to have forfeited the 
office and the Chair should recommend to the City Council that a new member be 
appointed to fill the unexpired term.  When a member misses three meetings within a 
six-month period, the Chair should discuss with the member the implications of their 
lack of attendance and options for improvement.  If the circumstances are expected to 
continue unimproved, the member may be asked to consider resigning from the 
Commission before reaching the above mentioned threshold of absences. 

 
F. Every official act taken by the Commission shall be by resolution or by motion by an 

affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum.  In the event that a member disqualifies 
themselves or passes, this is to be registered as "not voting".  Notwithstanding 
Robert's Rules of Order, the Chair shall vote on all resolutions or motions. 

 
G. Conduct of Meetings 

 
1. Order of Business – The following order of business may be modified for any 

meeting by a suspension of the rules, concurred in by a majority of the voting 
members present, except that consideration of matters set for public hearing must 
occur at or following the time indicated on the hearing notice: 
a) Call to Order and Quorum Call 
b) Approval of Agenda 
c) Approval of Minutes 



Tacoma Planning Commission Rules and Regulations (As Amended on August 1, 2018) Page 4 of 6 

d) Public Comment – The Chair shall decide whether this item will be included in 
the agenda, and if so, how much time will be allowed for each speaker.  Public 
comments, if included in the agenda, must be limited to items on the agenda 
that are not the topic of a recent public hearing.  

e) Discussion Items – Matters set for public hearing shall be considered at such 
time as determined by the Commission and set forth in the hearing notice. 

f) Communication – This may include other business brought forward by 
Commissioners, comments by Commissioners, and comments and additional 
information provided by Staff. 

g) Adjournment 
 

2. Conduct of Regular and Special Meetings: 
a) The Chair shall preside over all regular and special meetings of the 

Commission. 
b) The Chair introduces the agenda items. 
c) Staff and/or presenters invited by staff summarize the information prepared or 

received by the staff responsible for the agenda item. 
d) The Commission considers requests and may ask questions of the staff and/or 

other presenters.  Comments by the public on the agenda item under 
consideration may be permitted, but only at the discretion of the Chair. 

e) The Chair asks for reports from advisory committees or task forces, if 
appropriate. 

f) The Commission takes appropriate action, if an action is required. 
 

3. Conduct of Public Hearings: 
a) The Chair shall preside over all public hearings conducted by the Commission. 
b) The Chair calls the public hearing to order and announces the procedure for 

the public hearing as established by the Commission. 
c) Staff summarizes the staff report or other information prepared or received by 

the staff responsible for the hearing item. 
d) The Chair asks for reports from advisory committees or task forces, if 

appropriate. 
e) The Commission receives oral testimony. 
f) The Chair either closes the hearing and announces the date upon which the 

record of the hearing will remain open to receive additional written comments, 
or continues the hearing to a later date if there is a finding by the Chair that all 
interested parties have not been afforded an adequate opportunity to testify 
before the Commission or if new information is to be considered on which the 
Commission feels additional public testimony to be appropriate. 

g) At a meeting(s) subsequent to the public hearing, the Commission considers all 
oral and written testimony concerning the hearing item and acts to approve, 
disapprove, modify, or defer the decision-making until the completion of 
additional analyses. 



Tacoma Planning Commission Rules and Regulations (As Amended on August 1, 2018) Page 5 of 6 

 
H. Open Public Meetings Act and E-mail Exchanges 

 
E-mail exchanges between members of the Commission can constitute a violation of 
the Washington State Open Public Meetings Act (OPMA), Chapter 42.30 RCW.  
Generally, if a majority of the members participate in an e-mail discussion of 
Commission business, the members are conducting a meeting in violation of the 
OPMA requirement that meetings must be “open to the public with prior notice.”  It is 
suggested that Commission members observe the following guidelines to avoid OPMA 
problems with e-mail exchanges: 
1. When possible, limit e-mail exchanges on issues related to Commission business 

to less than a majority of Commission members.  Sending copies of an e-mail to 
less than a majority may not suffice if subsequent exchanges relay the content of 
the original exchange to a majority of members. 

2. Never decide at an open meeting that a majority of the Commission will continue or 
complete discussion of an agenda item by e-mail. 

3. One-sided (no response anticipated) informational e-mails to a majority or more of 
Commission members are probably consistent with the OPMA.  In open meetings, 
the Commission members should verbally announce that they have sent this type 
of e-mail if it relates to the discussion at hand.  Commission members are free to 
engage in e-mail exchanges with staff on one-sided e-mails, but not with each 
other. 

4. E-mail exchanges on issues that the Commission will not address are consistent 
with the OPMA.  However, if any reasonable chance exists that an issue relates to 
a vote that may or will come before the Commission, a majority of the Commission 
should not subject the issue to e-mail discussion. 

 
V. Records 
 

A. The Commission's adopted summary minutes of the public meetings shall be the 
official records.  The actual recording of each hearing item shall be the official record 
for such item.   

 
B. Supplemental records pertaining to matters of public meetings and public hearings 

shall be kept on file in the Planning and Development Services Department as 
required by law.  These supplemental records may include but not be limited to the 
following: 
1. Description of agenda items, including all submitted information therewith. 
2. Report of the Planning and Development Services Department, Commission 

Advisory Committees and Task Forces on the matter as presented to the 
Commission at a meeting thereof, including such material submitted in writing and 
in map form. 

3. Written communications concerning the matter. 
4. Facts concerning the matter. 
5. Records of all actions taken by the Commission in the matter (resolutions, motions, 

setting of dates for hearings, etc.). 



Tacoma Planning Commission Rules and Regulations (As Amended on August 1, 2018) Page 6 of 6 

6. Record of actions taken by the City Council in the matter (ordinances, resolutions, 
results of hearings, etc.). 

 
C. Recorded transcripts or summary minutes of all official Commission proceedings shall 

be filed with the City Clerk and shall be opened to public inspection. 
 
VI. Annual Report  

 
Pursuant to TMC 13.02.040, the Commission shall annually report to the City Council 
regarding accomplishments and the status of planning efforts undertaken in the previous 
year, and if applicable, the outlook of planning issues for the coming year.  Said report is 
typically prepared in July of each year and should, at the discretion of the Chair, take the 
form of a letter, a memorandum, a summary report or a copy of relevant minutes of the 
Commission’s meetings, and may be posted on the City’s website. 

 
VII. Miscellaneous 
 

A. Code of Ethics – Members of the Commission shall comply with the City of Tacoma’s 
Code of Ethics pursuant to TMC 1.46 while conducting Commission business.   
 

B. Disclosure of Contacts – Individual members of the Commission may, but are not 
required to, participate in or initiate discussions with interested parties affected by 
issues under consideration by the Commission.  Such meetings or contacts with 
citizens should be disclosed at the next scheduled meeting of the Commission.  The 
intent of such disclosures in a public setting is to preserve the integrity of the 
Commission’s process and provide a record and notice to other individuals who may 
also be affected or interested.  If a Commissioner receives a request to meet/discuss 
but prefers not to do so, he/she may suggest the requesting parties to express their 
comments and concerns through the normal procedures, i.e., providing testimony at 
public hearings and/or providing comments to staff. 

 
C. Contact Information – The contact information of members of the Commission should 

be considered public information and made available for public access upon request. 
 
D. Conferences – Members of the Commission may attend, at their own expense, 

conferences, meetings and training courses closely related to Commission business.  
 

VIII. Rules and Regulations Amendments 
 

The Rules and Regulations may be amended by the Commission by a majority of vote at 
any meeting. 


	Agenda (12-19-18)
	D-1 ACOD PC Packet 12-19-18
	D-1 (Memo)
	Subject:  JBLM Airport Compatibility Overlay District

	JLUS Att1
	D-1 (JLUS Overview Sheet)
	Code outline

	JLUS Key Issues Att2
	JLUS Comments Att3b
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	JBLM Staff Response Appendices
	D2 FLUM Packet
	D2 Memo - FLUM (12-19-18)
	Subject:  Future Land Use Map Implementation – Potential Rezones

	Attachment A Options Analysis 12.19.18

	D3 Packet
	D4 Memo - Year-End Review (12-19-18)
	PC 2018-2020 Work Program (Approved 6-20-18)
	Planning Commission Work Program (2018-2020)
	Planning Commission Recommendation
	June 20, 2018
	Expected Completion in 2018
	Correctional and Detention Facilities Permanent Regulations Adopted Feb. 2018
	Homeless Emergency Temporary Shelters Permanent Regulations Adopted April 2018
	Tacoma Mall Neighborhood Subarea Plan Adopted May 2018
	2018 Amendment Package  Expected Adoption June 2018
	2019-2024 Capital Facilities Program (CFP)  Expected Adoption October 2018
	Open Space Current Use Assessment Request (Private Application)
	Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months)  Expected Decision November 2018
	Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) – Permanent Regulations
	Expected Completion in 2019
	JBLM Accident Potential Zone
	Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months)
	2019 Amendment Package
	 FLUM Implementation – Phase 2: Residential Area-wide Rezones
	 Commercial Zoning Update – Phase 1: Revised Commercial Zoning Framework
	 Shoreline Master Program – 2019 Periodic Review
	 Manitou Annexation – Plan and Zoning Amendments
	 Historic Preservation Code Improvements – Demolition Review
	 Plan and Code Minor Amendments
	Infill Pilot Program – Phase 1B: Program Modifications (may be consolidated with Affordable Housing Action Strategy project, below)
	Affordable Housing Action Strategy – Land Use/Zoning Implementation (scope/phasing TBD)
	Pacific Avenue Corridor Plan (tied to Pacific Ave. BRT)
	Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months)
	Expected Completion in 2020  (very preliminary)
	Tideflats Interim Regulations – Extension (every 6 months)
	Open Space Corridors – Phase 2 (Geohazard Areas)
	Urban Design Program – Development/Creation
	2020 Amendment Package
	2021-2026 Capital Facilities Program (CFP)
	Tideflats Subarea Plan
	On-going Planning Issues
	Regional and Cross-Jurisdictional Issues
	Emerging and Deferred Issues

	D4 Attach2 - PC RulesRegs (as amended 8-1-18)
	I. Officers
	II. Advisory Committees and Task Forces
	III. Staffing
	IV. Meetings
	V. Records
	VI. Annual Report
	VII. Miscellaneous
	VIII. Rules and Regulations Amendments
	A. The Commission shall elect its own Chair, Vice-Chair, and such other officers as from time to time it may determine it requires, all of whom shall be members of the Commission.
	B. Nominations and elections of officers shall be conducted at the first meeting in September of each year or on a different date set by the Commission.  New officers will assume duties after the meeting following their election.
	C. Officer Qualification Considerations – The Officers should be interested in holding the position(s); be able to devote sufficient time to Commission business and attend as many Commission meetings as possible; be prepared to make presentations to t...
	D. The term of office shall be for one (1) year or until the next scheduled election.  In case of any vacancy in office, the vacancy shall be filled by an election at the first regular meeting after the occurrence of such vacancy.
	E. Duties of Officers – The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the Commission.  All resolutions adopted by the Commission and Commission correspondence shall be signed in his/her name as Chair of the Commission.  In the event of the absence of t...
	A. Advisory Committees – The Commission may establish advisory committees as it deems appropriate, following the procedures set forth in TMC 13.02.015.
	B. Task Forces – The Commission may also establish task forces as it deems appropriate to conduct extended and supplemental analyses of issues identified and defined by the Commission.  Task forces are ad-hoc and issue-oriented in nature and shall not...

	The Long-Range Planning Division Manager and/or his/her designee (hereinafter referred to as Staff) shall organize and supervise clerical details of the Commission's business and shall be responsible to the Commission for the proper preparation and ma...
	A. Regular Meetings – Regular public meetings of the Commission shall be held on the first and third Wednesday of each month at 5:00 p.m. in Room 16 of the Tacoma Municipal Building North, or in another location designated by the Commission.  If the r...
	B. Public Hearings – Public hearings conducted by the Commission shall be held in the Council Chambers of the Tacoma Municipal Building or another location designated by the Commission and indicated in the notice of hearing.  The date and time of the ...
	C. Special Meetings – Special meetings of the Commission set for a time different than regularly scheduled as hereinabove provided shall be held at such times as the Commission may determine, or may be called by the Chair for any time upon the written...
	D. Quorum – A quorum for the transaction of official business shall consist of a simple majority of appointed, filled positions of the Commission, per TMC 13.02.041.
	E. Absences – Members are expected to attend Commission meetings and to fully participate in and contribute to the work of the Commission.  Any member anticipating absence from a meeting should notify the Chair or Staff in advance, so that the absence...
	F. Every official act taken by the Commission shall be by resolution or by motion by an affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum.  In the event that a member disqualifies themselves or passes, this is to be registered as "not voting".  Notwithstan...
	G. Conduct of Meetings
	1. Order of Business – The following order of business may be modified for any meeting by a suspension of the rules, concurred in by a majority of the voting members present, except that consideration of matters set for public hearing must occur at or...
	a) Call to Order and Quorum Call
	b) Approval of Agenda
	c) Approval of Minutes
	d) Public Comment – The Chair shall decide whether this item will be included in the agenda, and if so, how much time will be allowed for each speaker.  Public comments, if included in the agenda, must be limited to items on the agenda that are not th...
	e) Discussion Items – Matters set for public hearing shall be considered at such time as determined by the Commission and set forth in the hearing notice.
	f) Communication – This may include other business brought forward by Commissioners, comments by Commissioners, and comments and additional information provided by Staff.
	g) Adjournment

	2. Conduct of Regular and Special Meetings:
	a) The Chair shall preside over all regular and special meetings of the Commission.
	b) The Chair introduces the agenda items.
	c) Staff and/or presenters invited by staff summarize the information prepared or received by the staff responsible for the agenda item.
	d) The Commission considers requests and may ask questions of the staff and/or other presenters.  Comments by the public on the agenda item under consideration may be permitted, but only at the discretion of the Chair.
	e) The Chair asks for reports from advisory committees or task forces, if appropriate.
	f) The Commission takes appropriate action, if an action is required.

	3. Conduct of Public Hearings:
	a) The Chair shall preside over all public hearings conducted by the Commission.
	b) The Chair calls the public hearing to order and announces the procedure for the public hearing as established by the Commission.
	c) Staff summarizes the staff report or other information prepared or received by the staff responsible for the hearing item.
	d) The Chair asks for reports from advisory committees or task forces, if appropriate.
	e) The Commission receives oral testimony.
	f) The Chair either closes the hearing and announces the date upon which the record of the hearing will remain open to receive additional written comments, or continues the hearing to a later date if there is a finding by the Chair that all interested...
	g) At a meeting(s) subsequent to the public hearing, the Commission considers all oral and written testimony concerning the hearing item and acts to approve, disapprove, modify, or defer the decision-making until the completion of additional analyses.


	H. Open Public Meetings Act and E-mail Exchanges
	1. When possible, limit e-mail exchanges on issues related to Commission business to less than a majority of Commission members.  Sending copies of an e-mail to less than a majority may not suffice if subsequent exchanges relay the content of the orig...
	2. Never decide at an open meeting that a majority of the Commission will continue or complete discussion of an agenda item by e-mail.
	3. One-sided (no response anticipated) informational e-mails to a majority or more of Commission members are probably consistent with the OPMA.  In open meetings, the Commission members should verbally announce that they have sent this type of e-mail ...
	4. E-mail exchanges on issues that the Commission will not address are consistent with the OPMA.  However, if any reasonable chance exists that an issue relates to a vote that may or will come before the Commission, a majority of the Commission should...

	A. The Commission's adopted summary minutes of the public meetings shall be the official records.  The actual recording of each hearing item shall be the official record for such item.
	B. Supplemental records pertaining to matters of public meetings and public hearings shall be kept on file in the Planning and Development Services Department as required by law.  These supplemental records may include but not be limited to the follow...
	1. Description of agenda items, including all submitted information therewith.
	2. Report of the Planning and Development Services Department, Commission Advisory Committees and Task Forces on the matter as presented to the Commission at a meeting thereof, including such material submitted in writing and in map form.
	3. Written communications concerning the matter.
	4. Facts concerning the matter.
	5. Records of all actions taken by the Commission in the matter (resolutions, motions, setting of dates for hearings, etc.).
	6. Record of actions taken by the City Council in the matter (ordinances, resolutions, results of hearings, etc.).

	C. Recorded transcripts or summary minutes of all official Commission proceedings shall be filed with the City Clerk and shall be opened to public inspection.
	A. Code of Ethics – Members of the Commission shall comply with the City of Tacoma’s Code of Ethics pursuant to TMC 1.46 while conducting Commission business.
	B. Disclosure of Contacts – Individual members of the Commission may, but are not required to, participate in or initiate discussions with interested parties affected by issues under consideration by the Commission.  Such meetings or contacts with cit...
	C. Contact Information – The contact information of members of the Commission should be considered public information and made available for public access upon request.
	D. Conferences – Members of the Commission may attend, at their own expense, conferences, meetings and training courses closely related to Commission business.



	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



